
HINGHAM SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
 August 7, 2023 at 5:00 PM 

  Central North Meeting Room, 2nd Floor 
Town Hall  

210 Central Street 
Hingham, MA 02043 

 
or Remote via Zoom  

Dial-in number: 1-929-205-6099 
Meeting ID: 814 9905 6768 

Passcode: 052244 
Website: https://zoom.us/join 

 
MEETING AGENDA 

1.        Call to Order 
            

2.        Approval of minutes 

           2.1      Minutes of the School Committee meeting held on July 10, 2023 
  

3.        Questions and Comments 

The Hingham School Committee encourages community engagement and welcomes questions and 
comments as agenda items are discussed at the meeting. In addition, we have set aside up to fifteen 
minutes at the beginning of this meeting for comments or questions that fall under the purview of the 
School Committee and are not already on tonight's agenda. If any guests wish to speak, please raise your 
hand, state your name and address, and address your comments to the Chairperson. Comments will be 
limited to 3 minutes per speaker and must relate to topics within the scope of responsibility of the School 
Committee. As established by the Massachusetts General Laws, the responsibilities of the School 
Committee are to (1) select and to evaluate the Superintendent, (2) review and approve budgets for 
public education in the district, and (3) establish educational goals and policies for the schools in the 
district. Speakers are encouraged to present their remarks in a respectful manner and to consider the 
privacy interests of others. The public comment period is not a time for debate or response to comments 
by the School Committee. The School Committee is not adopting or endorsing any of the comments made 
during the public comment period.  

In addition to this public comment period, the School Committee practice provides time for questions and 
comments from the public on new business items on the agenda. 

 
 
4.        Superintendent’s Report  
  
 4.1 Personnel Report 
 4.2 DESE Comprehensive District Review  
 4.3 Update on plans to support ban on town’s plastic single-use water bottles 
 4.4 Town Energy Facilities Audit  

https://zoom.us/join


 
  
5.        Communications 

 5.1       Communications Received by the Superintendent 
 5.2 Student Communications 
  5.3      Other Communications 

 

6.        Unfinished Business         
    

7.        New Business 

 7.1 To complete a second read of the Memorandum of Understanding with the Recreation   
  Commission and Select Board and act as appropriate 
 7.2 To review the contract for Assistant Superintendent and act as appropriate 

 7.3 To discuss a change in Student Services legal counsel and act as appropriate 
 7.4 To approve out of state field trips and as appropriate 
 7.5 To approve change in contract for lease of TRACES building  
 7.6 To approve donations and grants and act as appropriate 

 7.7 To review Policy AD - Mission Statement (second read) and act as appropriate 
7.8 To review Policy DJE - Procurement Requirements (second read) and act as appropriate  
 
 

8.      Subcommittee and Project Reports 
 Warrants Signed 
 
9.      Other items as may not reasonably be known 48 hours in advance of the meeting 

10.    Adjourn  

 
 
Next School Committee Meetings:  
Tuesday, August 29, 2023 at 7:00 PM 
Monday, September 11, at 7:00 PM 
 

This meeting is being held in person and/or remotely as an alternate means of public access pursuant to Chapter 2 
of the Acts of 2023 and all other applicable laws temporarily amending certain provisions of the Open Meeting 
Law.  You are hereby advised that this meeting and all communications during this meeting may be recorded by 
the Town of Hingham in accordance with the Open Meeting Law.  If any participant wishes to record this meeting, 
please notify the chair at the start of the meeting in accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20(f) so that the chair may 
inform all other participants of said recording. 

 



HINGHAM SCHOOL COMMITTEE 
 July 10, 2023  

   
MEETING MINUTES 

 

Called to Order at 5:00 PM 
School Committee Chair Nes Correnti called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM, and began by reading the 
following statement for those participating by zoom: 

This meeting is being held in person and/or remotely as an alternate means of public access pursuant to 
Chapter 2 of the Acts of 2023 and all other applicable laws temporarily amending certain provisions of 
the Open Meeting Law.  You are hereby advised that this meeting and all communications during this 
meeting may be recorded by the Town of Hingham in accordance with the Open Meeting Law.  If any 
participant wishes to record this meeting, please notify the chair at the start of the meeting in 
accordance with M.G.L. c. 30A, § 20(f) so that the chair may inform all other participants of said 
recording. 

School Committee members present: Chair Nes Correnti, Vice-Chair Michelle Ayer, Secretary Jen 
Benham, Kerry Ni, Tim Dempsey, Alyson Anderson, and Matt Cosman 
 
School Committee members participating remotely: none 
 
School Committee members absent: none 
 
Central Office Members present: Superintendent Dr. Margaret Adams and Director of Business and 
Support Services Aisha Oppong  
Also present: Executive Assistant Sherry Robertson 
Assistant Superintendent Kathryn Roberts participated remotely 
 
This meeting incorporated the use of the OWL camera to broadcast the meeting via Zoom. 
Harbormedia was also present and recording the meeting. 
 
Visitors present: Hingham High School Principal Rick Swanson, Director of Social Studies Andy Hoey, and 
Director of ELA Mary Andrews 
 
Remote visitors: There were approximately 16 remote attendees on Zoom. 
 
Approval of minutes:  
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to approve the minutes of the School Committee meeting held on June 12, 2023 

   
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to approve the minutes of the School Committee meeting with held on June 26, 

2023  

   



Questions and Comments: There were no questions or comments at this time. 
 
Superintendent’s Report 
Personnel Report: Dr. Adams noted the personnel report provided to the Committee in the meeting 
packet detailing recent hires, resignations, retirements, and job changes. She stated that the plan is to 
update the Committee monthly with a personnel report. 
 
Dr. Adams also reported that this is the second week of the extended school year (ESY) program. 
 
Communications 
none 
 
Unfinished Business 
None 
 
New Business 
 
Social Studies Program Review 

Director of Social Studies, Andy Hoey, gave a presentation that included a year 1 update, and program 

review. Mr. Hoey gave a detailed program review schedule for the upcoming year that will include a 

future presentation on the teams finding and action plan in the spring of 2024.  

 

End-of-Year English Language Arts (ELA) and Math Assessments 
Assistant Superintendent Kathryn Roberts introduced the presentation 
ELA Director, Mary Andrews, presented the ELA end of year data detailing student performance. The 
Committee asked questions about time spent test taking, and the effectiveness of interventions. 
Kathryn Roberts reviewed the Math Assessment Data, filling in for Mathematics Director Dave Jewett 
who was unable to attend. 
 
Community Service Requirement for Graduation 
High School Principal Rick Swanson stated that the Student Advisory Council has been discussing this 
topic for some time, and that the proposal is to create a graduation requirement of 40 hours of 
community service to be done over the course of the four years at the high school. Recent graduate 
Jasper Lee spoke in favor of this requirement. Resident Katie Sutton also spoke in favor of the 
requirement explaining that she has experience taking students on service trips. The Committee 
discussed whether or not to make this a graduation requirement, and discussed having a soft launch of 
the program next year, without making it a requirement at this time. No vote was taken. 
 
Trip to Florida in 2024 (Disney) 
Music teacher Phaedre Sassano was present remotely and explained that the band/orchestra is invited 
to participate in this annual trip, which will be held at Disney World next year. 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 
 

• It was voted to approve the Hingham Public Schools Music Trip to Orlando Florida from April 4-

April 7 of 2024 

  
  



Trip to Quebec in 2024 
Middle School Principal Derek Smith was present and explained that this trip had been done in the past, 

but not for some time. He stated that it is a great opportunity for students to practice their French 

speaking skills. He also noted that financial assistance and travel insurance are available. 

 

On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to approve the Grade 8 French Class trip to Quebec from March 7th- March 10th of 

2024 

  
Policy AD – Mission Statement (first read) 
Policy Subcommittee Chair Alyson Anderson reviewed the proposed changes to the mission statement. 
This was a first read, therefore no vote was taken. 
 
Policy DJE – Procurement Requirements (first read) 
Policy Subcommittee Chair Alyson Anderson reviewed the proposed changes to the policy related to 
procurement requirements. This was also a first read, therefore no vote was taken. 
 
Policy EBC-S – Interim HPS General Policy on COVID-Related Requirements 
The Committee discussed that the COVID policy is no longer necessary. 
On a motion by Jen Benham and seconded by Kerry Ni 

• It was voted to rescind policy EBC-S the Interim HPS General Policy on COVID-Related 

Requirements 

  
 
MOU with the Hingham Recreation Commission and Select Board (first read) 
Kerry Ni explained that the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) had developed after a field study 
was done by Weston & Sampson, and with the MOU the School Committee agrees to consolidate the 
management of the fields under the recreation department. She noted that the Recreation Commission 
and Select Board will need to vote on this agreement as well. This was a first read, therefore no vote was 
taken. 
 
 
Student Parking Fees at HHS 
Dr. Adams noted that this was discussed at the last meeting with High School Principal Swanson. Director 
of Business and Support Services Aisha Oppong included a memo in the packet detailing that the High 
School is proposing to increase the parking fee for students for the “close lot” from $40 to $80. In 
addition, Hingham High School proposes implementing a $20 fee for students for “far lot” parking. The 
memo also states that only seniors would be eligible to gain “close lot” access, and the option to 
purchase those placards would be determined via lottery. 
 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to approve the new parking fee structure at Hingham High School 

Change Order for Tennis Courts project at HHS 
Director of Business and Support Services Aisha Oppong submitted a memo explained that the change is 
needed to the previously approved tennis court project to be able to hire someone with a Construction 
Supervisor’s License. 



 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to approve a change order of $2,000 for the Hingham High School Tennis Court 
Project to ensure that a CSL can be hired to assist with pulling the required building permits to 
continue the project 
 

Rental Agreement – TRACES 
Director of Business and Support Services Aisha Oppong explained that after reviewing properties and 
bids, it was determined that the best available space that was economically feasible for the Traces 
program for the 2023-2024 school year would be Unit A-450, 293 Libbey Industrial Parkway, Weymouth, 
MA. 
 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to approve and a one-year lease with Gideon LLC with the option to renew for two 
years for the Traces program 

  
Grants and Donations 
Social Studies Director Andy Hoey explained that Hingham has been awarded a grant through DESE, The 
DESE Investigating History Grant and stated that the grant aims to fund the costs for professional 
development to implement this high-quality curriculum. He stated that Hingham Public Schools was 
awarded grant funding totaling $17,137, which is 100% of the funding requested for the 2023-2024 
school year. 
 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to accept the Investigating History Grant from the Massachusetts Department of 
Elementary and Secondary Education in the amount of $17, 137  
 

Hingham Education Foundation Grants 
Director of Business and Support Services Aisha Oppong also noted a memo she submitted to the 
Committee regarding grants from the Hingham Education Foundation. 
 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to accept $45,799.93 in grants from the Hingham Education Foundation for the 23-
24 fiscal year. The equipment, material and supplies will become the property of Hingham Public 
Schools. 
 

Declaration of Surplus 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to declare as surplus RICOH multipurpose copy machines from the Middle School, 
High School and Central Offices and to authorize the Director of Business and Support Services 
to dispose of surplus library books as listed in our memo at the least cost to Hingham 

 
 



District-wide per diem rates 
Director of Business and Support Services Aisha Oppong reviewed the proposed pay rates for per diem 
employees. 
 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to approve the district-wide per diem pay rates as outlined by Director of Business 
and Support Services Aisha Oppong. 

 
Subcommittee and Project Reports/Warrants Signed 

• Alyson Anderson reported that there is an upcoming meeting of the Climate Action Committee. 

• Kerry Ni reported that the Salary and Negotiations Subcommittee met on July 7th, today July 10th, 
and will meet on July 25th with Unit B. She also reported that they will be scheduling negotiations 
with the Bus Drivers’ Union, and the Administrators’ Association. 

• Jen Benham reported that there are financial warrants in the packet. 
 
Other items as may not reasonable be known 48 hours in advance of the meeting 
none 
 
 
On a motion by Michelle Ayer and seconded by Jen Benham 

• It was voted to adjourn at 7:36 PM. 
 

 

Respectfully Submitted By: Jen Benham 

 
 



 





GROUND
BREAKING
CEREMONY

HINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOL'S BUILDING
COMMITTEE INVITES YOU TO ATTEND
THE GROUNDBREAKING CEREMONY FOR
OUR NEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

FRIDAY,

AUGUST 25, 2023

11:00 AM
55 DOWNER AVE.
HINGHAM, MA

NEW HINGHAM 
ELEMENTARY SCHOOL



Margaret Adams, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools

HINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
220 Central Street • Hingham, Massachusetts 02043

781-741-1500 VOICE • 781-749-7457 FAX
madams@hinghamschools.org
www.hinghamschools.com

To: Hingham School Committee

From: Margaret Adams, Superintendent
Kelly Larkin, Human Resources Coordinator
Aisha Oppong, Director of Finance and Operations

Subject: Personnel Open Position

Date: August 7, 2023

The following report represents the current open positions as of August 7th and reasons for opening when
appropriate. Some summary notes include the following:

● As noted below, we have three elementary teachers posted for the purposes of staff on leave.
Two of these positions are leaves for later in September.

● There are nine other teaching positions currently open. We expect to have four positions filled by
the end of the week.

● Two elementary reading interventionists are needed.
● There are four office positions, as stated below.

Position Location Notes

Elementary Teacher-LTS East Teacher on Leave

Music Teacher East

Elementary Teacher-LTS Foster Teacher on Leave

Elementary TeacherLTS Foster Teacher on Leave

Reading Interventionist Foster

Reading Intervention Plymouth River Transfer to Teaching Position

First Grade Teacher Plymouth River New Position due to higher
enrollment (Transfer of Position
from Foster)

Spanish Teacher Plymouth River

mailto:madams@hinghamschools.org
http://www.hinghamschools.com


Spanish Teacher South Long-term Substitute previously
in position-not continuing

School Nurse Middle School Retirement

Science Teacher Middle School

Science Teacher Middle School

Art Teacher (.6) Middle School

Administrative Assistant
Guidance

Middle School

Art Teacher High School/Middle School

Health Teacher High School

Special Education
Teacher-Academic Tester

High School

Office Assistant-Guidance High School Transfer to another position in
the district

Human Resources Clerk Central

Executive Assistant-Director of
Finance and Operations

Central

In addition, the district has posted positions for full-time and part-time speech-language pathologists to be
funded through special education state grants. The intent is to provide services currently offered through
contracted services in a more economically efficient manner.

The district will also seek applicants for custodial, maintenance, bus drivers, substitutes, and food
services. The numbers of needed positions are consistent with past years.

Finally, we expect approximately 3-4 paraprofessionals in each school to be needed. The numbers of
open positions per building are consistent with past years.



Kelly Larkin
Human Resources Coordinator

HINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
220 Central Street • Hingham, Massachusetts 02043

781-741-1500 VOICE • 781-749-7457 FAX
klarkin@hinghamschools.org
www.hinghamschools.com

To: Margaret Adams, Superintendent of Schools

From: Kelly Larkin, Human Resources Coordinator

Cc: Aisha Oppong, Director of Finance and Operations

Subject: Personnel Report

Date: August 7, 2023

The following report represents changes in personnel during the period of July 10,2023 to August 7, 2023.

Appointments

Name Position Location

Gabrielle Majenski Substantially Separate Educator East

Wendy Kirk Classroom Teacher (0.5) South

Sydney Blasetti Classroom Teacher South Elementary

Amy Muldoon Special Education Administrator HPS

Steve Aithicosn Music Teacher - LTS South Elementary

Kaitlin Scott Executive Assistant to the
Assistant Superintendent

Central Office

Retirements

Name Position Location

None

http://www.hinghamschools.com


Resignations

Name Position Location

Kendelle Ingram Spanish teacher PRS

Jennifer Van Gelder Reading Interventionist Foster

Transfer

Name Position Location

Kayla Breslin Transition Room Coordinator High School







 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 1 
 

Frequently Asked Questions: District Reviews 
 
What is a district review? 
The district review is an evidence-based process that assesses district systems, enabling district leaders 
to reflect on progress and strengthen performance. The focus of the district reviews is to provide 
formative and actionable feedback. These reviews are conducted according to Chapter 15, Section 55A 
of the Massachusetts General Laws. 
 
The district review is designed to examine the systems, policies, and practices that drive the day-to-day 
work of the district, as well as those factors that may help or hinder staff performance and, ultimately, 
student performance and outcomes. Analysis of these systems, policies, and practices includes a focus 
on the ways in which the district works to improve and promote equity for all students. 
 
Why was our district selected for this district review? 
Along with a handful of other districts, your district was selected from a pool of districts that (a) have 
not had a district review in the last five years, and (b) do not have a concurrent Tiered Focused 
Monitoring (TFM) or New England Association of Schools and Colleges (NEASC) review scheduled for the 
2023-24 school year.  
 
Who is conducting the review, and what are their credentials?  
The review process is overseen by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE), but 
the review itself will be conducted by the American Institutes for Research (AIR). For more information, 
see the AIR website here. 
 
What are the reviewers looking for? 
The review focuses on DESE’s District Standards and Indicators. A detailed description of these 
standards can be found here. 
 
What is the difference between a comprehensive review and a targeted review? 
The comprehensive review focuses on all six DESE District Standards and Indicators. By comparison, a 
targeted review focuses on only three standards: either as a Student-Centered Systems review 
(Curriculum & Instruction, Assessment, Student Support) or as a Governance and Administrative 
Systems review (Leadership & Governance, Human Resources & Professional Development, Financial 
and Asset Management). If your district was selected for a targeted review, DESE will collaborate with 
your district to select one of these review types. 
 
Can we opt-out of this review? Can we delay it to a future year? 
No, districts may not opt-out or delay the review to a future year. 
 
What does the district review process entail? 



Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 2 
 

The process consists of four components: district self-assessment, document review, interviews, and 
classroom observations. 

● District Self-Assessment: Your district will complete and submit a document that evaluates its 
strengths and areas for growth across the six DESE standards. This task is required for districts 
with targeted reviews, but optional for districts with comprehensive reviews. 

● Document Review: AIR will request documents ranging from strategic plans to financial audit 
documentation to sample teacher and administrator evaluations. 

● Interviews: the review includes conversations with school committee members, district and 
school leaders, union leadership, teachers, families, and students. AIR will work with to 
coordinate logistics and arrange for these discussions, and ideally, avoid the need for coverages 
or substitutes.  

● Classroom Observations: AIR will work with your district to select a random sample of 
classrooms to observe. These reviews are to understand general themes in your district’s 
instructional practices, and will not be attributed to any individual teacher. Lessons should 
continue as they would normally. 

 
When will the visit take place? 
AIR and DESE will work with your district to select dates for an onsite visit between October 2023 and 
May 2024 that represent typical school days and are convenient for your community. 
 
When will the report be completed? 
The district will receive a Districtwide Instructional Observation Report that outlines findings from 
classroom observations approximately one month after the onsite visit. Approximately three months 
after the onsite, the district will receive a draft of the full report to review for factual errors. After any 
edits have been resolved, the final report will be posted to the DESE website. (Note that these estimates 
are based on previous years and may vary from district to district.) 
 
What is the result of the review? 
The entire review culminates in a published report that shares findings, relative to the District Standards 
and Indicators and recommendations for consideration. Superintendents often find their report helpful 
in identifying  areas for growth and guiding the district’s strategic direction. You can view a library of 
past reports from other districts here.  
 



 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 1 

District Review Self-Assessment 
 

Purpose 

The district self-assessment tool helps districts reflect on their systems and practices according to DESE’s District Standards and Indicators, which 

define effective district practice in six areas:  

• Leadership and Governance 

• Curriculum and Instruction 

• Assessment  

• Human Resources and Professional Development 

• Student Support 

• Financial and Asset Management  

 

The self-assessment, in combination with other data, will inform DESE’s decision of whether the targeted review will focus on governance and 

administrative systems (the Leadership and Governance, Human Resources and Professional Development, and Financial and Asset 

Management standards) or student-centered systems (the Curriculum and Instruction, Assessment, and Student Support standards). Both types 

of targeted reviews include classroom observations. 

 

Using the Tool 
The self-assessment lists each indicator within a standard and provides examples of effective practice for each indicator. Note that the examples 

are not an exhaustive list; please refer to the full District Standards and Indicators when completing the self-assessment. Please consider how 

well each indicator describes current practices in the district overall. Please also answer the question at the end of each indicator about the 

reasons for the ratings chosen. Districts are encouraged to submit any documents and data that illustrate these practices. Reflection questions 

are also included in the document. While it is not required or expected, districts are welcome to add brief information or explanations to any 

part of the self-assessment. 

 
 
  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 2 
 

Contents 

Initial Reflection Questions ............................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Standard 1: Leadership and Governance .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Standard 2: Curriculum and Instruction ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

Standard 3: Assessment.................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 11 

Standard 4: Human Resources and Professional Development ..................................................................................................................................................... 14 

Standard 5: Student Support .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 18 

Standard 6: Financial and Asset Management ............................................................................................................................................................................... 21 

Final Reflection Questions .............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 24 

 

 
 
 
 
  
  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 3 
 

Initial Reflection Questions 

DESE defines equity as providing students and groups of students with access to the resources, support and educational rigor they need in order 
to meet high expectations for cognitive, behavioral, and social-emotional growth and development. 
 

1. In what ways has the district successfully addressed issues of equity, including racial equity, for students or groups of students? 
 

2. What challenges related to equity, including racial equity, does your district confront? How have you begun to address these challenges? 
 

3. For each of the district standards, please indicate any particular district systems, policies, or practices that you would like the district 
review to address. (Please note that depending on the strengths and challenges the review team identifies, these suggestions might not 
be reflected in the report.) 

 
Leadership and Governance: 
 
Curriculum and Instruction: 
 
Assessment: 
 
Human Resources and Professional Development: 
 
Student Support: 
 
Financial and Asset Management:  

  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 4 
 

Standard 1: Leadership and Governance 

School committee members and district and school leaders work collaboratively and strategically to improve all students’ performance, 

opportunities, and outcomes. They establish, implement, and evaluate policies, procedures, systems, and budgets with a primary focus on 

achieving districtwide improvement goals, in part through equitable and effective use of resources.  

Indicator 1: School Committee Governance. The school 
committee: 

Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Focuses on improvement The committee’s work is guided by the district’s vision and 
improvement plan. It focuses on closing achievement, access, and 
opportunity gaps and regularly reviews disaggregated data to gauge 
progress. 

    

b. Establishes a culture of collaboration The committee maintains collaborative working relationships and 
engages stakeholders in the district improvement process. District 
and municipal leaders engage in open, frequent communication and 
have positive relationships. The committee provides opportunities for 
students to share meaningful input into policies and decision-making 
as appropriate. 

    

c. Fulfills its legal and fiduciary responsibilities as 
defined in Massachusetts state law 

The committee advocates for district funding and ensures equitable 
distribution of available resources to improve student outcomes. It 
operates with transparency, maintains a division of roles, and 
approves and monitors the district budget. The committee takes an 
active and constructive role in developing timely and effective 
strategies for collective bargaining and managing negotiations. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 5 
 

Indicator 2: District and School Leadership Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Leadership and engagement The superintendent establishes and leads an effective leadership 
team. Each school has an effective leadership team and ensures that 
leadership roles are appropriate for the district’s needs. The district 
ensures clear lines of internal and external communication and is 
responsive to feedback from students, families, and educators. The 
superintendent advises and makes recommendations to the school 
committee for sound educational policies, prudent budgeting, and 
effective collective bargaining. 

    

b. Focus on improvement District and school leaders focus on improving teaching and learning, 
with a particular focus on closing achievement, access, and 
opportunity gaps. They regularly review student data, including 
disaggregated data, to plan and assess strategies and practices. They 
ensure that programs are evidence based to the extent possible and 
maintain focus on high-quality implementation. District and school 
leaders identify persistently low-performing or struggling schools and 
programs for intervention and improvement planning, with 
responsibility shared between district and school leaders for making 
measurable and sustained improvement. 

    

c. Leadership development and support The superintendent ensures that all administrators are evaluated 
annually. School leaders make use of autonomies to support their 
school improvement plan and improve student outcomes. Educators 
are provided with meaningful leadership development opportunities. 
Systems and structures promote stability, including during leadership 
turnover. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

 



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 6 
 

Indicator 3: District and School Improvement Planning Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Stakeholder engagement and reflection District and school plans are developed using a clear, thoughtful, 
and inclusive process that includes wide representation. District and 
school leaders provide frequent and thorough updates to the school 
committee, staff, students, and the community about progress 
toward plan goals. Plans are revisited and revised using a 
participatory and data-driven reflection process. 

    

b. Plan elements 
 

Improvement plans have clear, measurable goals and ambitious 
strategies for improving performance, opportunities, and outcomes 
for all students. They are informed by data, including disaggregated 
student data. They include realistic assessments and equitable 
allocation of available staffing, financial, material, and operational 
resources. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

Indicator 4: Budget Development Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Budget development and monitoring District and school leaders develop the budget using a participatory 
and transparent process. The budget addresses the goals and 
strategies of the district’s improvement plans, benchmarking data 
available from DESE and elsewhere, and analysis of disaggregated 
student data. Administrators review the cost-effectiveness of 
programs, initiatives, and activities, referencing student data, and 
track spending throughout the year. Principals have some discretion 
to make spending decisions during the school year and have access 
to the information they need to make them. 

    



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 7 
 

Indicator 4: Budget Development Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

b. Resource allocation 
 

Resources (including funds, staff, materials, and scheduling) are 
allocated equitably to schools and programs to ensure improved 
performance, opportunities, and outcomes for all students, with an 
emphasis on closing achievement, access, and opportunity gaps. 
Resources are allocated based on students’ needs at each school 
and program. The district seeks ways to expand capacity and 
resources through shared service agreements and other external 
collaborations. Using student outcomes and other information, the 
district monitors the staffing, financial, material, and operational 
needs of schools, and addresses them in a timely, effective, and 
equitable way. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 8 
 

Standard 2: Curriculum and Instruction 

The district ensures effective implementation of high-quality, standards-aligned curricular materials1 that have undergone rigorous, research-

based review such as that of the CURATE project;2 instruction that challenges and supports all students to meet Massachusetts standards; and a 

variety of academic offerings preparing all students for college, career, and civic participation. 
 

Indicator 1: Curriculum Selection and Use Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Decision-making processes The district implements regular, rigorous curriculum reviews that 
consider specific district needs as well as relevant definitions of 
high-quality instructional materials, such as those of CURATE.  

    

b. Documented curriculum  Curricular materials are aligned to: 1) the content and rigor of the 
appropriate Massachusetts curriculum frameworks, and 2) relevant 
definitions of high-quality instructional materials. They are readily 
available and feasible to implement for all teachers. They support 
teachers to challenge and support all students. Curricular materials 
align vertically, with coherent student learning progressions. They 
are complementary across content areas. 

    

c. Taught curriculum Curriculum implementation is consistent and coherent within and 
across classrooms and schools. It is based on individual students’ 
needs and strengths and is supported by professional learning for all 
educator roles.  

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

                                                                 
1 Resources teachers use to facilitate sequences of learning experiences (e.g., lesson and unit plans, texts); also called adopted or written curriculum. 
2 https://www.doe.mass.edu/instruction/curate/default.html  

https://www.doe.mass.edu/instruction/curate/default.html


District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 9 
 

Indicator 2: Classroom Instruction Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Learning experiences for students Instruction allows students to access and engage with grade-
appropriate text every day, with meaningful real-world problems 
every day, and in scientific conversations using data every week. It 
enables students to develop social and emotional competencies 
(self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationship 
skills, and responsible decision-making). It supports students to 
acquire and use complex knowledge and subject-specific skills and 
vocabulary. It is designed inclusively to account for differences in 
students’ learning needs, competencies, interests, and levels of 
readiness. It centers on challenging, engaging tasks with measurable 
outcomes for all students. 

    

b. Adjustments to practice Instructional decisions are informed by students’ learning needs, 
skills, interests, and levels of readiness; the results of a variety of 
assessments; and feedback from students and colleagues. 

    

c. Learning environment Classroom climate and structures support all students to learn 
collaboratively, take academic risks, and take ownership of their 
learning. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 
  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 10 
 

Indicator 3: Student Access to Coursework Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Variety of academic offerings Courses of study help all students to develop the knowledge, skills 
and abilities necessary for success after high school. They provide 
opportunities for all students to pursue rigorous learning experiences 
aligned to their ambitions and interests. 

    

b. Equity of access Students from historically marginalized groups, including students of 
color, those receiving special education services, and economically 
disadvantaged students have equitable access to advanced 
coursework. They also have equitable access to instruction in areas 
not subject to statewide testing, such as computer science, foreign 
languages, health, history, and the arts. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 11 
 

Standard 3: Assessment 

The district establishes and supports a culture that values the use of data in improving teaching, learning, and decision-making. District and 

school leaders ensure that systems are in place for the efficient and purposeful collection, use, and sharing of data from a variety of assessments 

to guide decision making at the district, school and classroom levels and to improve all students’ performance, opportunities, and outcomes.  

 

Indicator 1: Data and Assessment Systems Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Data selection The district ensures that multiple sources of data are collected, and 
that the data provides a comprehensive picture of student, school, 
and district performance. 

    

b. Assessment methods The district ensures that educators use a variety of informal and 
formal assessment methods, including screeners, diagnostic tools, 
and  common interim assessments. The assessments are aligned 
across grades and subject areas and provide actionable information. 

    

c. Data quality checks The district ensures consistency in the administration of district 
assessments. It ensures the alignment to the Massachusetts  
curriculum frameworks, with particular attention to the practices or 
anchor standards for ELA and Literacy.  

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 12 
 

Indicator 2: Data Use Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. District data use District and school leaders use student performance data to set and 
track improvement goals, including goals for closing achievement, 
access, and opportunity gaps, for students of color, economically 
disadvantaged students, English learners, and students with 
disabilities. They use data to identify district strengths and 
weaknesses in comparison to other districts and/or state averages.  

    

b. Support for data use District leaders support the regular use of data to inform decision 
making at the classroom level and professional development 
designed to improve the use of data and assessments to inform the 
practice of all educators. They provide opportunities for educators 
and others, including their evaluators, to establish anticipated 
student learning gains and compare student results to anticipated 
gains. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

Indicator 3: Sharing Results Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Communication with district staff District leaders share data connected to district goals with educators 
in ways that are clear, understandable, and actionable. They ensure 
that individual educators have easy access to relevant data that can 
support classroom level decision making. 

    

b. Communication with families The district provides timely and effective information to families 
about their students’ progress toward attaining grade-level standards 
and whether they are on track to being college and career ready. It 

    



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 13 
 

Indicator 3: Sharing Results Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

regularly communicates with families evidence of the school and 
district’s performance. 

c. Communication with students The district ensures that evidence of a student’s performance is 
shared with students in meaningful and appropriate ways.  

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 14 
 

Standard 4: Human Resources and Professional Development 

The district strategically designs, implements, and oversees human resource and inclusive professional development efforts in a way that 

supports an aligned human capital management system and results in the employment, development and retention of effective educators who 

are successful in advancing all students’ performance, opportunities, and outcomes.  

 
 

Indicator 1: Infrastructure Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Infrastructure The district employs effective human resources policies, procedures, 
and practices. The district maintains and reports accurate 
employment-related records. It routinely analyzes and provides 
reports to principals for use in planning and decision-making. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 15 
 

Indicator 2: Recruitment, Hiring, and Assignment Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Recruitment systems Recruitment systems employ a variety of short-term and longer-term 
strategies and project supply and demand issues across schools. The 
district seeks to hire, develop, and retain a diverse workforce that 
successfully advances all students’ performance, opportunities, and 
outcomes.  

    

b. Hiring systems Hiring systems support hiring managers to make hiring decisions 
based on district priorities and to meet the learning needs of 
individual schools’ students. They establish a consistent selection 
process. The district continually evaluates and refines its hiring 
systems using data including student outcomes and educator 
retention rates. Hiring systems encompass both internal and external 
hiring. They verify appropriate licensure, endorsements, background 
checks, and waivers. 

    

c. Assignment Teacher assignment is based on students’ learning needs. The district 
ensures that master schedules result in the equitable distribution of 
educator skills, ensuring appropriate supports for all students and 
programs. The district ensures that teachers teaching outside of their 
licensure area do so for no more than 20 percent of their time.3 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

                                                                 
3 The out-of-field allowance was increased to 50 percent for the 2020-21 and 2021-22 school years, and this flexibility was extended for the 2022-23 school year. The flexibility 

does not apply to teachers with certain licenses. 

https://www.doe.mass.edu/lawsregs/603cmr7.html?section=15


District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 16 
 

Indicator 3: Supervision, Evaluation, and Educator 
Development 

Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Supervision and evaluation systems Supervision and evaluation systems prioritize opportunities for 
educators to receive high-quality feedback that improves their 
practice. They ensure evaluators receive training, support, and 
development in effective, bias-free supervision and evaluation that 
affects educator effectiveness. They provide all educators with 
performance ratings related to the Standards of Effective 
Teaching/Administrative Leadership Practice based on: 
1. evidence of practice,  
2. impact on student learning,  
3. student or staff feedback, and  
4. goal attainment 

    

b. Professional development systems Professional development systems are aligned with the MA Standards 
for Professional Development and the district’s vision/mission. They 
are described in a professional development plan for all professional 
staff that is consistent with DESE’s guidelines. They include teacher-
led PD and job-embedded, content-based, and individually pursued 
learning and structures for collaboration. They are informed by 
student and educator data and aligned to district, school, and/or 
educator goals and to the district’s instructional materials. 

    

 

c. Induction and mentoring systems Induction and mentoring systems ensure all beginning teachers and 
administrators receive mentoring support beyond the induction year 
(minimum of 50 hours) in alignment with DESE’s guidelines. They 
ensure that mentors are well-qualified, extensively trained, carefully 
selected educators who have demonstrated effectiveness with 
students and colleagues. These systems are continually evaluated and 
refined through systematic data collection on program design, 
implementation, and outcomes, including student learning outcomes 
and educator retention rates. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

https://www.doe.mass.edu/edeval/rubrics/
https://www.doe.mass.edu/edeval/rubrics/
http://www.doe.mass.edu/pd/standards.html
http://www.doe.mass.edu/pd/standards.html


District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 17 
 

Indicator 4: Recognition, Leadership Development, and 
Advancement 

Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Recognition, Leadership Development, and 
Advancement 

The district provides differentiated roles and opportunities for 
growth, including distributed leadership opportunities and an 
articulated career ladder, such that it can effectively build leadership 
skills and retain and maximize the impact of effective professional 
staff. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 18 
 

Standard 5: Student Support 

The district ensures that schools equitably support all students’ safety, well-being, and sense of belonging; systematically identify and address 

students’ needs; and engage students, families and community partners to improve all students’ performance, opportunities, and outcomes. The 

district assesses the programs and practices used across schools to ensure that students experience educational continuity and are well 

supported through school transitions.  

 

Indicator 1: Safe and Supportive School Climate and 
Culture 

Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Safe and supportive environment The district has comprehensive plans to support the safety and well-
being of students and staff that are developed with input from 
representative stakeholders and aligned with and integrated into 
district and school improvement plans. It ensures that all school and 
classroom environments are positive, healthy, and inclusive for all 
students. 

    

b. Access, equity, engagement, and student voice The district demonstrates a commitment to access and equity for all 
students, and to developing staff capacity to examine and dismantle 
implicit biases and systemic inequalities  and to create environments 
in which all students can deeply learn, grow, and thrive.  
The district ensures that schools promote meaningful student 
engagement and leadership; provides opportunities for all students 
to participate in and/or influence education decisions and 
experiences, with a particular focus on engaging students who have 
been historically underserved.   

    

 

c. Positive behavioral approaches The district implements clear schoolwide positive behavioral systems 
and expectations. It ensures that behavior management/discipline 
policies, practices, and procedures are inclusive, developmentally 
appropriate, unbiased, equitable, supportive, and aligned to the 
needs of all students. The district builds adult capacity to identify, 
understand, and respond to the underlying causes of student 
behavior. It engages students and families in developing positive 

    



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 19 
 

behavioral systems. 

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

Indicator 2: Tiered Systems of Support Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Instructional and support strategies for all 
students 

All students receive Tier 1 instruction and supports. The district 
provides evidence-based practices, programs and systems to 
students by tier. Schedules and resource allocation are designed to 
ensure that Tier 2 and 3 supports supplement, and do not supplant, 
Tier I instruction. 

    

b. Academic, behavioral, and social emotional 
interventions and supports 

The district uses summative and formative evaluation procedures to 
make decisions about student intervention/instruction using 
scientifically validated assessments for screening, diagnostic and 
progress monitoring purposes. School leadership teams have 
protocols for engaging students, families, and partners in the tiered 
support process, including gathering input from students to make 
decisions about the supports they receive. 

    

c. Evaluation of tiered systems of support The school leadership team has a process to determine whether 
interventions are structured and assigned equitably. The team 
ensures that student outcomes are assessed and uses that data to 
determine whether initiatives and efforts are resulting in 
achievement gains.  

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 
  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 20 
 

Indicator 3: Family, Student, and Community Engagement 
and Partnerships 

Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Family and student engagement The district partners with students and families in a way that is asset-
based, culturally responsive, and collaborative. It ensures that 
students and families have a central voice in planning and decision-
making, including gathering and using their feedback to improve 
school practices, communication, and climate. It ensures that schools 
support two-way communication and access for all students’ families, 
including providing interpretation and translation services to families, 
as appropriate. 

    

b. Community engagement The district has a clear process to find, establish, and manage 
partnerships and other community resources to engage during in-
school and out-of-school time. It conducts a comprehensive mapping 
of partners and resources, and assesses family and student needs, 
with a goal of equitable support and responsiveness for communities, 
schools, and families. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 21 
 

Standard 6: Financial and Asset Management 

District leaders manage the equitable allocation and effective use of funding and other resources to improve all students’ performance, 

opportunities, and outcomes, support the district’s improvement plan, and secure community support. 

 

Indicator 1: Budget Documentation and Reporting Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Budget documents The district’s budget documents are clear, accurate, and user-
friendly. They are explicitly connected to district and school 
improvement planning and demonstrate how student performance 
data---particularly data related to performance, access, and 
opportunity outcomes and gaps---has been used to set budget 
priorities. Budget documents provide historical spending data for 
comparisons and sufficient detail for stakeholders to understand the 
current year’s resource allocations. 

    

b. Municipal agreement Costs paid and managed directly by the municipality are described in 
a current written agreement and clearly documented in the budget 
and financial accounting 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 
 
 
 
  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 22 
 

Indicator 2: Adequate Budget Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Provision and use of resources The community provides sufficient general appropriation funds each 
year to meet or exceed required net school spending and cover other 
costs such as transportation. The district uses all available funding 
effectively to support student performance, opportunities and 
outcomes. The district annually reviews staffing and scheduling to 
plan for the effective use of people and time. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

Indicator 3: Financial Tracking, Forecasting, Controls, and 
Audits 

Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Business office processes  The district’s business office provides regular, accurate reports to the 
superintendent and school committee on spending from all funding 
sources, and forecasts spending through the end of the year, with 
adequate school-level information provided to every principal. It 
ensures that business office personnel are trained and supervised, 
and systems are in place for procurement in accord with state laws 
and regulations, timely payment of invoices, and accurate payrolls.  
The district spends down grant funds so that no grant funds revert to 
the state.  It competitively procures independent financial auditing 
services at least every five years, implements audit 
recommendations, and complies with other regulations as applicable. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 23 
 

 

Indicator 4: Capital Planning and Facility Maintenance Examples of effective practice How well does this indicator describe  
your district’s current practices?  

Put an X in the box that represents your rating 

Very well Well Somewhat 
well 

Not at all 
well 

a. Preventative maintenance  The district has a formal preventative maintenance program to 
prolong the effective life of the district’s capital assets. The district 
ensures that educational and program facilities (including adequate 
access to technology) are accessible, clean, safe, secure, well-lit, well-
maintained, and conducive to student learning.  

    

b. Long-term capital plan The district has a long‐term capital plan that describes future capital 
development and improvement needs, including adequate-sized 
facilities based on enrollment projections. The plan is reviewed and 
revised as needed with input from all appropriate stakeholders. 

    

Please explain the reasons for your responses above (the table will expand as you enter your answer). If there are documents or data that illustrate your responses, please 
list and submit them along with this self-assessment. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



District Review Self-Assessment 

Massachusetts Department of Elementary and Secondary Education – Page 24 
 

Final Reflection Questions 

1. Please describe how the self-assessment was conducted (e.g., participants met as a group to complete the self-assessment; each 
participant completed the self-assessment independently and a composite was developed from their responses; each participant 
completed the self-assessment independently and the participants met subsequently to discuss their responses and draft the final 
version, etc.) 

 
 

2. Who participated (list titles/roles)? 
                
 

3. Please share any insights that emerged from the self-assessment process. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Margaret Adams, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools

HINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
220 Central Street • Hingham, Massachusetts 02043

781-741-1500 VOICE • 781-749-7457 FAX
madams@hinghamschools.org
www.hinghamschools.com

To: School Committee Members

From: Margaret Adams, Superintendent
Aisha Oppong, Director of Finance and Operations

Subject: Update on School’s Preparations for Town Ban on Distribution and Sale of Plastic
Single-Use Water Bottles

Date: August 7, 2023

The Select Board, in the spring of 2023, adopted a town-wide policy that restricted the
procurement, sale, and distribution of single-use plastic water bottles as of September 1 in the
schools and municipal buildings. The schools are taking the following steps to ensure a smooth
transition for this change.

Principals and the district will communicate throughout the first couple of weeks leading up to
the new school year into the fall about the upcoming change using several different mediums.
Families will be encouraged to have their students bring a reusable water bottle to fill up
throughout the school day. Principals will also communicate with other partners, including PTOs,
about the upcoming change. School leaders will also consider any routines needed during lunch
or other times of the day to support students. The high school principal and athletic director will
communicate with coaches, student leaders, families, and booster groups.

In addition, Plymouth River stopped selling water bottles in its cafeteria in January of 2023. The
implementation included reminders to families to send students with refillable water bottles.
Students brought water bottles to recess and lunch. The principal reports that the transition went
well.

Food Services is also preparing for the upcoming change. At elementary schools, students can
purchase additional milk during lunch. There are no plans to sell water in other types of
containers at the elementary level. Middle and high schools may have non-carbonated,
non-flavored water using other containers for sale. Details are still being worked out. Flavored
water will still be available for purchase at the secondary level. At this time, we believe the state
will again provide funding to support universal free lunch for all students.

mailto:madams@hinghamschools.org
http://www.hinghamschools.com


Facilities are also preparing for the change by ensuring all water bubblers and filling stations are
operational by the start of the school year. All elementary classrooms will have a functioning
water bubbler with very few exceptions. The middle school has a water filling station on each
floor, including two on the first floor. The high school has nine water bubblers and six hydration
stations. In addition, the schools have requested three additional water-filling stations from the
town. The status of these extra water filling stations is still in process as they go through the
bidding process. The schools are also seeking out additional grant funding sources that are
available to support the implementation of additional water-filling stations. Facilities will monitor
all filling stations to ensure filters are changed when needed to ensure the equipment is
operational for student use.



Town of Hingham 
Municipal Single-Use Plastic Water Bottle Policy 

April 2023 
 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent 
The purpose of this policy is to reduce the common use of single-use plastic water bottles and to promote the use 
of reusable bottles on Town properties, thereby reducing local land and marine pollution, reducing waste, 
protecting the town’s unique natural beauty and irreplaceable natural resources, and saving the Town the money 
associated with the purchasing and disposal of packaged water.   
 
Section 2. Definitions 
Single-use plastic bottle means a beverage container made from any type of plastic resin. 
 
Reusable bottle means a beverage container that is either (1) made from a plastic alternative such as stainless 
steel or glass, or (2) made of plastic other than polyethylene or polyvinyl chloride that is durable, non-toxic, and 
generally considered a food grade material.  
 
Non-carbonated water means water which, by nature and after possible treatment and packaging, taking into 
consideration usual technical tolerance, does not contain free carbon dioxide in amounts larger than are necessary 
to keep the hydrogen carbonate salts present in the water dissolved. 
 
Section 3. Use Regulations 
Except where required for public health and/or public safety purposes, or to comply with applicable regulations 
and statutes, the Town of Hingham shall not procure, sell, or distribute non-carbonated, unflavored drinking water 
in single-use plastic bottles of less than one gallon. 
 
Section 4. Exemptions 
In the event of a declaration of an emergency (by the Emergency Management Director or other duly authorized 
Town, county, commonwealth or federal official) affecting the availability and/or quality of drinking water for 
residents of the Town of Hingham the Town shall be exempt from this policy until seven calendar days after such 
declaration has ended. Further, the Town shall be exempt from this policy for the purposes of distribution at 
significant public safety incidents, such as working fires or long-duration incidents that require members to 
rehydrate according to rehabilitation policies. 
 
Section 5. Administration and Enforcement 
The administration and enforcement of this policy shall be the responsibility of the Town Administrator or their 
designee.  
 
Section 6. Effective Date 
This policy shall become effective September 1, 2023.  

https://www.lawinsider.com/dictionary/noncarbonated-natural-water


   

Rev. 091422 

MUTUAL CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 

THIS MUTUAL CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made as of _________________, by 
and between Centrica Business Solutions Services. A New York corporation located at  Rosell Dr. Ballston 
Lake, New York 12019 (“Centrica”), and the Town of Hingham, a Massachusetts municipality with offices 
located at 210 Central St, Hingham, MA 02043 (“Hingham”). 
 (each of the foregoing referred to individually as "Party" or collectively as the "Parties"). 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to explore certain business opportunities, which may include deal structuring 
and project finance of energy related projects or otherwise (the “Proposal” or “Proposals”), and to 
preserve the confidential nature and all rights of the Parties in respect of confidential or proprietary 
information and trade secrets provided by one Party to the other Party in connection with the Proposal, 
subject to the terms and conditions contained herein.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the receipt by the Parties from each other of Confidential 
Information for their mutual benefit in connection with the Proposal, and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as 
follows: 

1. Confidential Information Defined.   

a. For the purpose of this Agreement, “Confidential Information” shall include this Agreement, the 
existence of negotiations between the Parties concerning the Proposal, and any and all data and 
other information of a Party (including data and other information of its Affiliates and subsidiaries 
and its and their respective customers, suppliers or other third parties) in whatever form 
maintained, whether oral or written, electronic or on computer disk, tangible, intangible, or 
otherwise, regardless of whether or not it has been marked confidential, received by the 
Recipient, whether prior to or after the date hereof, including information pertaining to (i) 
patents, trademarks, trade names, trade secrets, know-how, computer data, software and source 
codes, (ii) operational, sales, promotional and marketing strategies, methods, data, materials, 
techniques and studies (including information used by a Party in connection with the marketing, 
development, manufacture, assembly, fabrication or other production and quality control of a 
Party’s products and services), (iii) financial and corporate records, including business and 
operating plans, forecasts, financial statements and results that have not been made public, (iv) 
information relating to past, current or prospective suppliers and/or customers, including 
customer lists, customer data (whether personal or personally identifiable information or 
aggregated or anonymized information), agreements, the relationship between a Party and its 
customers or suppliers, and the nature and type of products or services sold or provided under 
such relationship), or (v) any other information designated by the Discloser to be confidential, 
secret and/or proprietary.  To the extent that Confidential Information shall include oral, non-
documentary or trade secrets, the Discloser shall identify it as confidential at the time of the 
disclosure and thereafter, reduce the same in writing within thirty (30) days thereof  but, to the 
extent a trade secret, with enough specificity only to identify its existence and not the trade secret 
itself.  



   

Rev. 091422 

b. Exclusions from Definition.  The term Confidential Information does not include any information 
which (i) at the time of disclosure or thereafter is generally available to the public (other than as 
a result of an unauthorized disclosure by any Party or its Agents), (ii) was available to the Recipient 
on a non-confidential basis from a source other than the Discloser, provided that such source is 
not and was not known by the Recipient to be bound by a confidentiality agreement or other duty 
of confidentiality that protected the Information, (iii) has been independently acquired or 
developed by the Recipient without violating any of its obligations under this Agreement and 
without use of or reference to any Confidential Information, or (iv) was in the lawful possession 
of the Recipient prior to disclosure. 

2. Nondisclosure Obligations. Each Party that receives Confidential Information (the “Recipient”) from 
the disclosing Party (the “Discloser”) agrees that: 

a. the Confidential Information will be used solely in connection with the Proposal;  

b. it will safeguard the Confidential Information against disclosure by employing at least the same 
means to protect the Confidential Information as it uses to protect its own non-public, 
confidential, or proprietary information, but with not less than reasonable care;  

c. it shall not, and shall cause its Affiliates, board members, officers, employees, agents, professional 
advisors, and/or consultants (collectively, “Representatives”), not to, at any time use, reveal, 
report, publish, transfer or otherwise disclose to any person, corporation or other entity any of 
the Confidential Information without the prior written consent of the Discloser, except a Recipient 
may distribute the Confidential Information to its Representatives who need such Confidential 
Information for purposes of evaluating the Proposal.  Provided however, that such 
Representatives understand and agree to the obligations hereunder further that any disclosure 
by such Representative is as though a disclosure by the Recipient directly; and 

d. For purposes of this Agreement, “Affiliate” means a corporation or other legal entity that directly 
or indirectly controls or is controlled by the Party or is under common control with the Party; none 
of which may be a direct competitor of Centrica. 

e. At any time during the term of this Agreement and for one year following termination or 
expiration of this Agreement, the Parties hereby irrevocably agree (i) not to directly or indirectly 
circumvent, bypass, or obviate the intent of this Agreement and (ii) not to accept any business 
opportunity related to the transactions contemplated herein which is first introduced by the other 
Party, without first receiving the written consent of the other Party.  

3. Ownership; Return of Confidential Information.   

a. Recipient acknowledges that the Confidential Information is and at all times remains the sole and 
exclusive property of Discloser and that Discloser has the exclusive right, title, or interest to its 
Confidential Information.  No right or license, by implication or otherwise, is granted by Discloser 
under any patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, know-how, or other intellectual 
property rights or proprietary rights presently owned or subsequently owned by Discloser, as a 



   

Rev. 091422 

result of disclosure of Confidential Information hereunder except for the limited, revocable, non-
exclusive right to use such Confidential Information solely for the purpose of the Proposal. 

b. Upon request by the Discloser, the Recipient shall promptly (and in any event within ten (10) days) 
return (using accepted encryption techniques for stored or transmitted data as agreed by the 
Parties) or irretrievably destroy (in a secure manner as agreed by the Parties) (i) such Confidential  
Information, (ii) all copies or other reproductions thereof, (iii) all letters, notes and reports 
thereof, and (iv) all other materials, derived from the Confidential Information which are in the 
Recipient’s control. If requested, the Recipient agrees to represent in writing to the Discloser that 
it has complied with the provisions of this paragraph. In no event will the Recipient be required 
to delete or destroy any Confidential Information if such action would violate any law, regulation 
or court order.  

c. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, it is understood and agreed by all Parties that 
each Party's existing computer systems may, in the ordinary course of operation, be programmed 
to automatically create back-up copies of electronic files, and such automatic process may include 
all or portions of the Confidential Information.  To the extent that such computer back-up 
procedures create copies of the Confidential Information in the ordinary course of operation, such 
Party may retain such copies in its archival or back-up computer storage for the period such Party 
normally archives backed-up computer records, provided that such archival or back-up copies are 
not accessed further, a Party’s legal department or its outside counsel may retain copies of such 
Confidential Information in its legal archives for the purpose of determining obligations hereunder 
in the event of a dispute concerning the performance of this Agreement.   

4. Representations and Warranties.  No representations or warranties, express or implied, are made by 
either Party in connection with the accuracy or completeness of the Confidential Information and the 
Recipient releases the Discloser from any and all liability arising directly or indirectly out of or in 
connection with the Recipient’s use of or reliance on any Confidential Information of the Discloser.  
Each Party represents and warrants to the other Party that this Agreement has been duly authorized 
by all necessary action, has been duly executed by an authorized person of such Party, and represents 
the valid and binding obligation of such Party, enforceable against such Party in accordance with its 
terms. 

5. Access to IT Systems.  If a Party or its Representatives (the “Accessing Party”) has access to any secure 
portion of the other Party’s computer or information technology system or network (“IT System”), 
the following shall apply: 

a. Accessing Party will not (i) attempt to gain unauthorized access to the other Party’s or its Affiliates’ 
IT Systems or any information or data contained therein; (ii) use, post, transmit or introduce any 
device, software or routine which interferes or attempts to interfere with the operation of the 
other Party’s or its Affiliates’ IT Systems; (iii) use the other Party’s or its Affiliates’ IT Systems to 
post, transmit or store material or information in violation of any local, state, federal or foreign 
law, regulation or treaty, or any third party privacy or intellectual property rights, including 
without limitation those related to privacy, electronic communications, and anti-spam legislation; 
(iv) publish, post, upload, or otherwise transmit any information or data that contains any viruses, 



   

Rev. 091422 

Trojan horses, works, time bombs, corrupted files or other computer programming routines that 
are intended to damage, detrimentally interfere with, surreptitiously intercept, or expropriate 
any systems, data, personal information, or property of another, or use the IT Systems of the 
other Party or its Affiliates to perpetrate a cyber attack or similar malicious conduct; or (v) use or 
permit the use of any tools in order to probe, scan, or attempt to penetrate or benchmark the 
other Party’s or its Affiliates’ IT Systems.  

b. Without limiting the foregoing, Accessing Party will establish, implement, and maintain a 
reasonable program of organizational, operational, administrative, physical, and technical 
safeguards appropriate to ensure compliance with this Section  and as necessary to comply with 
and meet all applicable laws. 

c. In the event that the Accessing Party is in breach of this Section 5, or in the event of any accidental 
or unauthorized access to the other Party’s or its Affiliates’ IT Systems, or in the event of any 
disclosure, copying, use or modifications of any Proprietary Data (as defined below), the Accessing 
Party will use best efforts to immediately advise the other Party and to take all steps requested 
by the other Party (and all other reasonable steps) to remedy the same including, but not limited 
to, protecting the other Party’s customers against the consequences of any accidental or 
unauthorized disclosure or use of Proprietary Data and providing all data security breach 
notifications required of either Party under any applicable law, at Accessing Party’s sole cost and 
expense.  As used in this Agreement, “Proprietary Data” includes all Confidential Information that 
is received by Accessing Party from the other Party (and/or its Affiliate(s)) or its or their IT Systems 
that is Confidential Information the possession, storage and/or disclosure of which is governed by 
any applicable law or regulation concerning privacy, data security and the protection of personally 
identifiable information. 

6. Compliance with Legal Process.  In the event the Recipient becomes legally compelled to disclose any 
of the Confidential Information, to the extent allowed by law, the Recipient shall give the Discloser 
prompt notice of such requirement so that the Discloser may seek a protective order or other 
appropriate remedy and/or waive compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  In the event that 
such protective order or other remedy is not obtained, or the Discloser waives compliance with the 
terms hereof, provided Recipient agrees to provide only that Confidential Information that it is 
advised by  counsel it is legally required. 

7. Jurisdiction, Governing Law, Waiver of Jury Trial.  Each of the Parties hereby irrevocably consents and 
submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in New York County in the State of New York. This 
Agreement shall be interpreted, governed, and construed under the laws of the State of New York, 
without reference to its choice of law principles.  EACH PARTY HEREBY IRREVOCABLY WAIVES THE 
RIGHT THAT IT MAY HAVE TO A TRIAL BY JURY ON ANY CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, SUIT, DEMAND, 
ACTION, AND CAUSE OF ACTION OR OTHER PROCEEDING ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED 
TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

8. Remedies for Breach.  The Parties both acknowledge that a breach of this Agreement would cause 
irreparable harm to the other party and expressly agree that monetary damages would be inadequate 
to compensate for any such breach. The Parties agree that in the event of a breach of this Agreement, 



   

Rev. 091422 

the Discloser shall be entitled to obtain equitable relief, including injunction and specific performance, 
in addition to all other remedies available at law or equity. If either party institutes any action or 
proceeding against the other relating to the provisions of this Agreement or any breach thereof, the 
prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be entitled to its reasonable expenses and 
attorneys’ fees and all reasonable costs and disbursements incurred. 

9. Term.  The term of the Agreement shall be for three (3) years provided however, the Parties'  
obligations under this Agreement will expire two (2) years from the date of receipt of the Confidential 
Information; provided, however, that with respect to Confidential Information constituting trade 
secrets or other legally protected information, the Parties’ obligations hereunder shall extend until 
such time and for so long as such protection is afforded under applicable law, but in any event no less 
than two (2) years. The Parties agree and acknowledge that obligations of confidentiality provided 
herein are not indefinite nor terminable at will. 

10. Miscellaneous.   

a. Neither Party may assign this Agreement or any interest herein (other than to an Affiliate) without 
the express prior written consent of the other Party, such consent not to be unreasonably 
withheld.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of any permitted 
successors and assigns of the respective Parties. 

b. This Agreement shall in no way be construed to (i) preclude in any way either Party from pursuing 
any business opportunities in addition to the Proposal, subject to the confidentiality obligations 
set forth in this Agreement; (ii) establish any relationship or obligation between the Parties with 
respect to such business opportunities; or (iii) establish any relationship between the Parties with 
respect to the Proposal other than the confidentiality obligations set forth in this Agreement.  

c. Nothing in this Agreement shall obligate Discloser to provide any Confidential Information to 
Recipient.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that unless and until a definitive agreement 
between Discloser and Recipient has been executed and delivered, none of Discloser, Recipient 
or any of their respective Agents shall be under any legal obligation of any kind whatsoever with 
respect to the Proposal opportunity by virtue of this Agreement except as set forth herein. 

d. This Agreement represents the entire understanding and agreement of the Parties hereto with 
respect to the matters contained herein, and may be amended, modified or waived only by a 
separate writing executed by both Parties. 

e. This Agreement may be executed and delivered (including by Email or facsimile transmission) by 
the Parties in separate counterparts by facsimile or in PDF format, each of which when executed 
and delivered shall be deemed to be an original but all of which taken together shall constitute 
one and the same agreement. 

f. The invalidity, illegality or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the 
validity, legality or enforceability of any other provisions of this Agreement, which shall remain in 
full force and effect. If any of the covenants or provisions of this Agreement are determined by a 
court to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, then the court making such determination shall 



   

Rev. 091422 

replace such covenant or provision with one that is valid, legal and enforceable and reflects, as 
closely as possible, the Parties’ intentions.  

g. The term “include” or “including” shall mean in each instance include or including “without 
limitation”. 

11. Notices; Delivery; Effectiveness. Any notice, request, demand or other formal communication 
required or permitted to be given by a Party pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed delivered (a) when delivered personally or by verifiable facsimile or E-
mail transmission unless such delivery is made (i) on a day that is not a business day in the place of 
receipt or (ii) after 5:00 p.m. local time on a business day in the place of receipt, in either of which 
cases such delivery will be deemed to be made on the next succeeding business day, (b) on the next 
business day after timely delivery to a reputable overnight courier and (c) on the business day actually 
received if deposited in the United States mail, when sent by registered or certified mail, return 
receipt requested and postage prepaid, addressed as provided below. 

12. Release of Onsite Liability.     

a. CENTRICA INDEMNIFICATION. During the audit of all Hingham-owned properties, buildings and 
locations Centrica shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless, reimburse and defend 
Owner, its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and contractors 
from, for and against any and all third party claims for injury or death or damage to property due 
to the negligence or willful misconduct of Centrica.    

b. OWNER INDEMNIFICATION. During the audit of all Hingham-owned properties, buildings and 
locations Hingham shall indemnify, protect, defend and hold harmless, reimburse and defend 
Centrica, its affiliates and their respective officers, directors, employees, agents and contractors 
from, for and against any and all third party claims for injury or death or damage to property due 
to the negligence or willful misconduct of Hingham. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have duly executed this Agreement as of the date first above written. 

CENTRICA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS SERVICES, INC TOWN OF HINGHAM 

Signed ___________________________ Signed ___________________________ 
Name ___________________________ Name ___________________________ 
Title ___________________________ Title ___________________________ 
Date ___________________________ Date ___________________________ 
Email ___________________________ Email ___________________________ 

CONTACT FOR NOTICES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT 

Address 44 Bearfoot Road, Suite 200 
Northborough, MA 01532 

Address ___________________________ 

Attn General Counsel  Attn ___________________________ 
  Email ___________________________ 
  Phone ___________________________ 



  

1 | P a g e  Centrica Business Solutions US Inc. | 3 Roselle Drive | Ballston Lake | NY | 12019 
 

 
CENTRICA BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, Inc.  
44 Bearfoot Road, Suite 200 
Northborough, MA 01532 
 
Town of Hingham       Hingham Public Schools 
Art Robert       Aisha Nelson Oppong  
Assistant Town Administrator / Operations   Director of Business & Support Services  
roberta@hingham-ma.gov     aoppong@hinghamschools.org 
781.741.1451 x 2409      781-741-1500 
 
RE:      MGL 25A, 11i, ENERGY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PROCUREMENT MODEL & THE PRELIMINARY 
FEASIBILITY ASSESMENT  
 
 
Dear Mr. Robert and Ms. Nelson Oppong, 
 
Centrica Business Solutions (“Centrica”) is pleased to offer the Town of Hingham a no-cost energy 
Preliminary Feasibility Assessment in exploration of a potential “Energy Management Services” 
agreement.   
 
Energy Management Services Program:  The Department of Energy Resources (“DOER”) offers Energy 
Management Services (“EMS”) procurement options under MGL 25A, 11i, the enabling Massachusetts 
legislation for Energy Savings Performance Contracting (“ESPC”).  The primary intent behind ESPC and 
the EMS legislation is to empower Federal, State and local government agencies, such as cities and 
towns, to leverage energy efficiency and energy cost savings to help pay for infrastructure and capital 
upgrades, while concurrently lowering greenhouse gas emissions.   
 
Though cash can be used to pay for an EMS project, in whole or in part, a borrowing of some kind will 
typically be necessary, usually in the form of a bond or a tax-exempt lease purchase.  These funds go to 
pay for any number of energy-efficient or energy-generating infrastructure improvements (from new 
lighting, to buildings envelope, HVAC improvements, solar systems, etc).  In accordance with rules of the 
EMS laws, total energy cost savings generated by the project (i.e. by the new equipment) must exceed 
the annual debt service associated with the project.  Typical projects for towns like Hingham vary widely 
in size between about $2 and $15 million, depending on the energy cost savings potential available.   
 
Because the savings generated exceeds the cost of the project, across a maximum term of 20 years, 
upgrades can be paid for without budgeting for them.  Once set up, the EMS model offers easy 
procurement for these capital upgrades, which concurrently addresses both deferred maintenance 
needs and sustainability goals, without impacting your annual budget.  To achieve budget neutrality, 
and for borrowings to remain fully off-book, the 25A, 11i legislation requires that projects be bonded at 
100% and that all savings be 100% guaranteed by enterprise level Energy Services Companies 
(“ESCO’s”).  Any number of easily procured project Phases, each of which would carry its own maximum 
term of 20-years, can be initiated and carried out as needed or desired and, depending on the Town’s 
debt analysis and position, may use any combination of cash, grant, or borrowing to cover costs, 
notwithstanding, that guaranteed savings must always exceed the debt service.   
 
Stages of the Energy Management Services Project:     
 



  

2 | P a g e  Centrica Business Solutions US Inc. | 3 Roselle Drive | Ballston Lake | NY | 12019 
 

• Preliminary Feasibility Assessment (“PFA”):  This preliminary, high-level audit/assessment is 
offered to demonstrate the value of the EMS procurement model and to confirm, for both 
Centrica and the Town, that guaranteed energy and cost savings opportunities/potential are 
sufficient to generate the cash flow often needed to support a 25A, 11i project.  At this 
preliminary stage there is no risk to the Municipality.   

• Request for Qualifications (“RFQ):  Once the Municipality is presented with the PFA and assesses 
that a project is desirable, they notify and submit a draft RFQ to DOER.  Upon DOER’s approval, 
the Municipality posts the RFQ to the Central Register, to which, in the case of Hingham, 
Centrica will almost certainly respond.  The Municipality then evaluates the RFQ responses and, 
according to their specific criteria, selects the most qualified ESCO.   

• Investment Grade Audit (“IGA”):  Once selected, the ESCO and Municipality will enter into an IGA 
Agreement.  This detailed audit stage represents a significant investment for the ESCO.  Though 
there is no up-front cost to the Municipality for the IGA, these costs are included and rolled into 
the total cost of the executed project.  In the event the Municipality decides not to move 
forward with a project they will pay the ESCO a pre-negotiated “breakup fee.”     

• Energy Management Services (EMS) Agreement:  Upon the Municipality’s final scope approval, 
the savings guarantee and the measurement and verification protocols, the ESCO and 
Municipality will execute an EMS Agreement.   

• Financing:  The Municipality will determine how to pay or finance the project with any 
combination of sources (cash, incentives, grants, debt) to maximize their dollar value, and 
secure third-party financing where necessary, which the ESCO can help with.   

• Implementation/Construction:  ESCO builds the project agreed to in the EMS Agreement 
• Measurement and Verification:  ESCO, over the course of the 20 year terms, will measure and 

verify their guaranteed savings according to the M&V plan included in the EMS Agreement.     

Project Initiation:  As indicated above, the project starts with a Preliminary Feasibility Assessment or 
PFA.  This assessment comes with no cost and no risk to the Municipality.  If we find, upon completion of 
the analysis, that there is no opportunity, or if Hingham does not feel it makes sense to move forward 
with a project for any reason, there is no cost or penalty.   

Preliminary Feasibility Assessment (PFA):  The PFA starts with a utility bill and utility consumption 
analysis.  This requires that Hingham share the most recent electric, gas and water bill(s) available for 
each building they want included in the Phase 1 scope.  After receiving and analyzing the bills, Centrica 
will visit all buildings included in the project.   

At this audit stage, the site visit will seek to identify energy-consuming equipment on site and determine 
a rough estimate of energy load and consumption.  Only mechanical and open spaces need to be 
accessed, along with one or two empty classrooms.  Upon arrival or perhaps by phone, Centrica will 
hope to interview relevant facility staff in order to get a basic understanding of building operations and 
the particular “pain points”, prior to walking the facility.   This preliminary, high-level audit/assessment 
is offered to demonstrate the value of the EMS procurement model and to confirm, for both Centrica 
and the Town, that guaranteed cost savings and cash flow are sufficient to support a project that 
Hingham might envision.  

Prior to initiation of the PFA:   
• Site visits will be scheduled in advance between Chris Pimentel, Centrica’s Sr. Account Executive 

on the project, and a point person(s) assigned by Hingham.   Such coordination and approval 
from Hingham’s point person(s) will be necessary prior to any initial and follow-up site visits.  



  

3 | P a g e  Centrica Business Solutions US Inc. | 3 Roselle Drive | Ballston Lake | NY | 12019 
 

• All persons representing Centrica that enter Hingham buildings in furtherance of the EMS 
project will undergo CORI checks prior to visiting any Hingham sites. 

• An agreement will be executed to restrict the use of Hingham's shared or collected data from 
being used outside this project and that releases Hingham from liability or responsibility for any 
personnel representing Centrica while they are on Hingham property.   

 
Cost Statement:  There is no cost or risk associated with the Preliminary Feasibility Assessment stage of 
this project.  There are no requirements and nothing binding on Hingham that would require any action 
or payment whatsoever should they decide not to move a project forward with Centrica after the PFA.   
 
Attached with this memo please find a Mutual NDA with the requested liability language included 
therein.  We hope you find this satisfactory and look forward to working with the town of Hingham.     
 

 

 

Chris Pimentel, JD, CEM 
Sr. Account Exec 
Centrica Business Solutions  
E.    chris.pimentel@centrica.com   
O.   1-518-406-0349  
M.  1-617-733-7931 
 
 

Chris.Pimentel
Pencil















Margaret Adams, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools

HINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
220 Central Street • Hingham, Massachusetts 02043

781-741-1500 VOICE • 781-749-7457 FAX
madams@hinghamschools.org
www.hinghamschools.com

To: Hingham Public Schools School Committee

From: Dr. Margaret Adams, Superintendent
Dr. Barbara Cataldo, Interim Executive Director for Student Services

Subject: Change in Student Services Legal Counsel

Date: August 7, 2023

The following is to request a change of legal counsel for Student Services from Murphy, Hess,
Toomey & Lehane to the Lyons Law Group for the 2023-2024 school year. The Lyons Law
Group is a small firm located on the South Shore that specializes only in providing district legal
services in special education and issues related to student services. Lyons Law Group has a
well-established practice that is used by many surrounding school districts.

The rationale for the request is to support the needs of Student Services, including:
● Collaboration with a smaller firm that specializes in providing district support in special

education and other related student services will help strengthen our ability to strengthen
our current programming both in student services and special education programming.

● Catherine Lyons, the principal, has previous experience as an educator including as a
speech and language pathologist. This firsthand experience with the needs of districts,
students, and families will improve our ability to support families, staff, and students.

● As a smaller firm, their rates are less than the current provider. The rate per hour is
estimated to be 20% less an hour.

● The Lyons Law Group has well-established relationships with many advocates and legal
counsel used by families in the South Shore. These relationships can support and
strengthen our collaboration with the families of our students of special needs.

● The Lyons Law Group has a well-established track record of providing professional
development services that build and strengthen the implementation of processes and
procedures for special education and other student services. Many of our staff have
attended past professional seminars led by the principal, Catherine Lyons. These
sessions are well-known in the state and nationally by special education and student
services administrators. This strong background and experience in professional
development will strengthen our programs in student services.

mailto:madams@hinghamschools.org
http://www.hinghamschools.com


● Thus, in addition to supporting the resolution of cases, the Lyons Law Group   will work to
advise us on the procedural and substantive aspects of the law, practical implications,
and best practices for ensuring and maintaining compliance.

In the spring of 2024, we propose the creation of a committee in conjunction with the school
committee to review and interview potential counsels for student services.









 

 1

COMMERCIAL LEASE 
Unit A-450, 293 Libbey Industrial Parkway, Weymouth, MA. 

 
1.  PARTIES:  GIDEON LLC, 29 Reef Point, Hull, Massachusetts 02045 (hereinafter 

referred to as “LESSOR”), which expression shall include its heirs, successors, and assigns where 
the context so admits, does hereby lease to Hingham Public Schools (hereinafter referred to as 
"LESSEE"), which expression shall include its successors, executors, administrators, and assigns 
where the context so admits, and the LESSEE hereby leases the following described premises: 
 
 2.  PREMISES:  Unit A-450, 293 Libbey Industrial Parkway, Weymouth, MA. of the 
LIBBEY PARKWAY BUSINESS CONDOMINIUM created by Master Deed dated February 
25, 2002 and recorded with the Norfolk County Registry of Deeds at Book 16275, Page 359 and 
amended and restated in its entirety by Amended and Restated Master Deed dated April 17, 2002 
and recorded in said Deeds at Book 16536, Page 378 (the “Master Deed”), said unit containing  
approximately 4,000+/- square feet of warehouse/office area , together with an approximately 
5% interest in the common area and facilities of the Condominium and access to 4-6 common 
parking spaces, with all appurtenances thereto, as shown on the plan attached hereto as Exhibit A 
(hereinafter “the Unit” or “the Premises”). 

 
3.  TERM:  The lease term shall be from July 10, 2023 to June 30, 2024, with an option to 

renew for up to two additional one-year periods.  
 

4.  RENT: The LESSEE shall pay to the LESSOR rent as scheduled below. All rent 
payments shall be payable in advance in equally monthly installments.  The installments shall be 
as follows: 

 
Year One: An annual rate of $66,000, paid monthly on or about 12th of each month at a rate of 
$5,500 per month.   
 
Year Two (Optional):  An annual rate of $67,896, paid monthly on or about 12th of each month at 
a rate of $5,658 per month.  The LESSEE shall provide notice of vacancy by May 15, 2024. 
                                       
Year Three (Optional):  An annual rate of $69,996, paid monthly on or about 12th of each month 
at a rate of $5,833 per month.  The LESSEE shall provide notice of vacancy by May 15, 2025. 
                                                                   

5. SECURITY DEPOSIT:  Upon the execution of this lease, the LESSEE shall pay to the 
LESSOR the amount $10,000, which shall represent first month’s rent, and security deposit (the 
security deposit to be held as a security for the LESSEE's performance as herein provided and 
refunded to the LESSEE at the end of this lease subject to the LESSEE's satisfactory compliance 
with the conditions hereof).  There shall be no obligation for the LESSOR to hold the Security 
Deposit in a separate or segregated account and LESSEE shall not be entitled to interest payments 
on the Security Deposit. 
 
 
 

 



 

 2

6. UTILITIES AND TRASH REMOVAL:  The Lessor shall pay, as they become due, 
all bills for electricity and other utilities (whether they are used for furnishing heat or other 
purposes) that are furnished to the leased premises.  

 
LESSOR shall be responsible to pay, as they become due, all bills for normal trash removal 

from the Unit.   
 

LESSOR shall have no obligation to provide utilities or equipment other than the utilities 
and equipment within the premises as of the commencement date of this lease.  In the event 
LESSEE requires additional utilities or equipment, the installation and maintenance thereof shall 
be the LESSEE's sole obligation, provided that such installation shall be subject to the written 
consent of the LESSOR, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or 
conditioned. 
 

7.  USE OF LEASED PREMISES:      The lessee shall use the property to operate an 
advanced educational woodshop. No occupation or activity shall be conducted in the Premises or 
use made thereof which will be unlawful, improper, or offensive, or contrary to any federal or state 
law or any municipal by-law or ordinance in force in the city or town in which the Premises are 
situated.     

 
 
LESSEE also acknowledges that this Lease is subject to the terms and conditions of the 

applicable Condominium Documents, including the Condominium Trust and the Master Deed, as 
well as any rules or regulations of the association of unit owners.  LESSEE agrees to comply with 
the Condominium Documents.               
 

8.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The LESSEE acknowledges that no trade or 
occupation shall be conducted in the leased premises or use made thereof which will be unlawful, 
improper, noisy or offensive, or contrary to any law or any municipal by-law or ordinance in force 
in the city or town in which the premises are situated. 
 

9.  FIRE INSURANCE:  The lessor certifies to the lessee that the lessor’s insurance is 
suitable for the lessee’s purpose, which is to operate an advanced educational woodshop. The 
LESSEE shall not permit any other uses of the leased premises which will make voidable any 
insurance on the property of which the leased premises are a part, or on the contents of said 
property or which shall be contrary to any law or regulation from time to time established by the 
New England Fire Insurance Rating Association, or any similar body succeeding to its powers.  

 
 

10.  MAINTENANCE: 
 

A.  Lessee's Obligations:   The LESSEE agrees to maintain the leased premises in 
good condition, reasonable wear and tear and damage by fire and other casualty only 
excepted, and whenever necessary, to replace plate glass and other glass therein, 
acknowledging that the leased premises are now in good order and the glass whole.  The 
LESSEE shall not permit the leased premises to be overloaded, damaged, stripped, or 



 

 3

defaced, nor suffer any waste.  LESSEE shall obtain written consent of LESSOR before 
erecting any sign on the premises. 

 
B. Lessor's Obligations:  The LESSOR agrees to maintain the structure of the 

building of which the leased premises are a part in the same condition as it is at the 
commencement of the term or as it may be put in during the term of this lease, reasonable 
wear and tear, damage by fire and other casualty only excepted, unless such maintenance 
is required because of the LESSEE or those for whose conduct the LESSEE is legally 
responsible. 

 
The Condominium Association shall keep all sidewalks adjacent to and serving the 

Premises free of snow and ice, said cost being included in the condominium common area 
maintenance fees which is paid by the LESSOR. 

 
11. ALTERATIONS-ADDITIONS:  The LESSEE shall not make structural alterations 

or additions to the leased premises, but may make non-structural alterations provided the LESSOR 
consents thereto in writing, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or 
conditioned.  All such allowed alterations shall be at LESSEE's expense and shall be in quality at 
least equal to the present construction.  LESSEE shall not permit any mechanics' liens, or similar 
liens, to remain upon the leased premises for labor and material furnished to LESSEE or claimed 
to have been furnished to LESSEE in connection with work of any character performed or claimed 
to have performed at the direction of LESSEE and shall cause any such lien to be released of record 
forthwith without cost to LESSOR.   
 

12. ASSIGNMENT-SUBLEASING:  The LESSEE shall not assign or sublet the whole 
or any part of the leased premises without LESSOR's prior written consent.  Notwithstanding such 
consent, LESSEE shall remain liable to LESSOR for the payment of all rent and for the full 
performance of the covenants and conditions of this lease. 
 

13. SUBORDINATION:  This lease shall be subject and subordinate to any and all 
mortgages, deeds of trust and other instruments in the nature of a mortgage, now or at any time 
hereafter, a lien or liens on the property of which the leased premises are a part and the LESSEE 
shall, when requested, promptly execute and deliver such written instruments as shall be necessary 
to show the subordination of this lease to said mortgages, deeds of trust or other such instruments 
in the nature of a mortgage. 
 

14. LESSOR'S ACCESS:   The LESSOR or agents of the LESSOR may, at reasonable 
times and upon reasonable notice, enter to view the leased premises and may remove placards and 
signs not approved and affixed as herein provided, and make repairs and alterations as LESSOR 
should elect to do and may show the leased premises to others, and at any time within six (6) 
months before the expiration of the term, may affix to any suitable part of the leased premises a 
notice for letting or selling the leased premises or property of which the leased premises are a part 
and keep the same so affixed without hindrance or molestation. 
 

 
 



 

 4

15. INDEMNIFICATION AND LIABILITY:  The LESSEE shall save the LESSOR 
harmless from all loss and damage occasioned by the use or escape of water or by any nuisance 
made or suffered on the leased premises caused by LESSEE, its employees or invitees, unless such 
loss is caused by the neglect of the LESSOR.   
 

16. LESSEE'S LIABILITY INSURANCE:  THE LESSOR shall maintain fire and 
casualty insurance covering the building in amounts comparable to that carried by landlords of 
similar properties by a company licensed to do business in Massachusetts.  The LESSEE shall 
maintain adequate insurance on LESSEE’s personal property and trade fixtures (it being agreed 
that the same shall be the sole risk of the LESSEE) and commercial general liability insurance 
with a combined single limit of at least Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) naming LESSOR as an 
additional insured with respect to injury or damage to person(s) or property at, on or about the Unit 
or, if caused by LESSEE or anyone for whom LESSEE is legally responsible, on or about the 
Premises.  The LESSEE shall deposit with the LESSOR certificates for such insurance at or prior 
to the commencement of the term, and thereafter within thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of 
any such policies.  All such insurance certificates shall provide that such policies shall not be 
cancelled without at least ten (10) days prior written notice to each assured named therein. 
 

17. FIRE, CASUALTY-EMINENT DOMAIN:  Should a substantial portion of the 
leased premises, or of the property of which they are a part, be substantially damaged by fire or 
other casualty, or be taken by eminent domain, the LESSOR may elect to terminate this lease.  
When such fire, casualty, or taking renders the leased premises substantially unsuitable for their 
intended use, a just and proportionate abatement of rent shall be made, and the LESSEE may elect 
to terminate this lease if: 
 

(a) The LESSOR fails to give written notice within thirty (30) days of intention to 
restore leased premises, or 

 
(b) The LESSOR fails to restore the leased premises to a condition substantially 

suitable for their intended use within ninety (90) days of said fire, casualty or taking. 
 
The LESSOR reserves, and the LESSEE grants to the LESSOR, all rights which the LESSEE may 
have for damages or injury to the leased premises for any taking by eminent domain, except for 
damage to the LESSEE's fixtures, property, or equipment. 
 

18. DEFAULT AND BANKRUPTCY:  In the event that: 
 

(a) The LESSEE shall default in the payment of any installment of rent or other 
sum herein specified and such default shall continue for ten (10) days after written notice 
thereof; or 

 
(b) The LESSEE shall default in the observance or performance of any other of the 

LESSEE's covenants, agreements, or obligations hereunder and such default shall not be 
corrected within thirty (30) days after written notice thereof; or 

 
(c) The LESSEE shall be declared bankrupt or insolvent according to law, or, if any 



 

 5

assignment shall be made of LESSEE's property for the benefit of Creditors. Then the LESSOR 
shall have the right thereafter, while such default continues, to re-enter and take complete 
possession of the leased premises, to declare the term of this lease ended, and remove the 
LESSEE's effects, without prejudice to any remedies which might be otherwise used for arrears of 
rent or other default.  The LESSEE shall indemnify the LESSOR against all loss of rent and other 
payments which the LESSOR may incur by reason of such termination during the residue of the 
term as and when due had this lease not been terminated, less the proceeds, if any, of any reletting 
of the leased premises subsequent to the termination of this lease.  If the LESSEE shall default, 
after reasonable notice thereof, in the observance or performance of any conditions or covenants 
on LESSEE's part to be observed or performed under or by virtue of any of the provisions in any 
article of this lease, the LESSOR, without being under any obligation to do so and without thereby 
waiving such default, may remedy such default for the account and at the expense of the LESSEE.  
If the LESSOR makes any expenditures or incurs any obligations for the payment of money in 
connection therewith, including but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees in instituting, 
prosecuting or defending any action or proceeding, such reasonable, actual and documented sums 
paid or obligations insured, , shall be paid to the LESSOR by the LESSEE as additional rent.  
LESSOR agrees to use good faith efforts to mitigate its loss. 
 

19. NOTICE:  Any notice from the LESSOR to the LESSEE relating to the leased 
premises or to the occupancy thereof, shall be deemed duly served, if personally delivered or 
mailed to Hingham Public Schools, 220 Central Street, 3rd Floor, Hingham, MA 02043 ATTN:  
Aisha N. Oppong the leased premises, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage 
prepaid, addressed to the LESSEE.  Any notice from the LESSEE to the LESSOR relating to the 
leased premises or to the occupancy thereof, shall be prepaid, addressed to the LESSOR at such 
address as the LESSOR may from time to time advise in writing. All rent notices shall be paid and 
sent to the LESSOR at 29 Reef Point, Hull, Massachusetts 02045.                    

 
21. SURRENDER:  The LESSEE shall at the expiration or other termination of this lease 

remove all LESSEE's goods and effects from the leased premises, (including without hereby 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, all signs and lettering affixed or painted by the LESSEE, 
either inside or outside the leased premises).  LESSEE shall deliver to the LESSOR the leased 
premises and all keys, locks thereto, and other fixtures connected therewith and all structural 
alterations and additions made to or upon the leased premises, in good condition, reasonable wear 
and tear, damage by fire or other casualty only excepted.  In the event of the LESSEE's failure to 
remove any of the LESSEE's property from the premises, LESSOR is hereby authorized without 
liability to LESSEE for loss or damage thereto, and at the sole risk of LESSEE, to remove and 
store any of the property at LESSEE's expense.  

 
22.  NOTICES: All notices required to be given hereunder shall be in writing and sent by 

(1) certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (2) hand delivered, or (3) by 
facsimile, provided Sender receives receipt of confirmation of facsimile transmission, addressed 
as follows: 

 
 
 
 



 

 6

23.   If LESSOR performs any work on behalf of LESSEE, the LESSEE agrees to 
reimburse the LESSOR.  At this point LESSOR and LESSEE agree, that the lessor will provide 
110 electricity to the wood working machines.  All other electricity that is greater than 110 that 
needs to be piped to lessee’s equipment and the lessee will reimburse lessor for such expenses.  
 
If to LESSOR: 
 
 Gideon LLC 
 29 Reef Point 
 Hull, Massachusetts 02045 
 
With a copy to: 
 
 Lauren D. Barry, Esquire 
 Devin, Barry & Austin, P.C. 
 80 Washington Street, Building S 

Norwell, Massachusetts 02061 
Telephone (781) 982-2400 
Facsimile (781) 982-8161 

 
If to LESSEE:  
 
Hingham Public School 
220 Central Street 
3rd Floor 
Hingham, MA 02043 
ATTN:  Aisha N. Oppong – Director of Business 
 
 
With a copy to: 
 
 Or to such other addresses as the parties may designate from time to time by notice 
provided in accordance with this provision. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said parties hereunto set their hands and seals this____ day 
of _____________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 7

GIDEON LLC, LESSOR 
 
 
_________________________ 
By: Scott B. Berry 
It’s: Manager 
 
 
_________________________ 
Hingham Public School 
By:  Dr. Margaret Adams 
Superintendent of Schools 
 

 



Memorandum

To: Margaret Adams, Superintendent of Schools
From: Rick Swanson, Hingham High School Principal
Date: July 28, 2023
Re: Career Grant at Hingham High School

Cathy Savery, School Counselor and Post-Secondary Planning Coordinator at HHS, first won a
MassHire grant two years ago. She recently earned renewal of the $7,000 grant, which has so
far supported a variety of new programming for HHS students. Over the past two years, the
planning of these events has been a collaborative effort among eleven different staff members,
including teachers, school counselors and administrative assistants. With the renewal of the
grant, HHS expects to both continue and extend the extra programming that has enriched our
school over the past two years.

Related programming includes:
● a Career Exploration Event (during the school day) for eleventh-grade students;
● an after-school job fair that welcomes all students;
● MassHire presentations (career counseling) for seniors;
● support for the annual Harbormen Helping Hingham Day; and
● Career Center workshops on a variety of topics.

As in the past, new grant funding will help to pay for transportation costs, speaker fees, and
stipends.



Michelle Romano
Director of Science, K-12

HINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS
17 Union Street • Hingham, Massachusetts 02043
781-741-1560 x 2031 VOICE • 781-741-1515 FAX

mromano@hinghamschools.org
www.hinghamschools.org

To: Dr. Margaret Adams, Superintendent of Schools

From: Michelle Romano, Director of Science K-12

Date: August 4, 2023

Re: DESE FC 601 Grant Award

We received notification that the Hingham Public Schools successfully applied for funding from
the DESE FC 601 Grant, which provides districts with money for OpenSciEd adoption
expenditures. The DESE FC 601 Grant provides funding to support districts that are in their
second year or beyond of implementing the OpenSciEd middle school curriculum. The grant is
available to districts that have implemented OpenSciEd in middle school for at least a year, are
not eligible for other grant funding or financial support for OpenSciEd, demonstrated a
commitment to continue OpenSciEd implementation through the grant year and beyond, and
articulated a plan to support sustainable professional learning and support for teachers to
implement OpenSciEd in the middle school successfully. Hingham Public Schools was awarded
grant funding totaling $39,785.

The DESE FC 601 Grant funding will be used toward the direct implementation of the
OpenSciEd curriculum program at Hingham Middle School. The grant will be used to purchase
OpenSciEd classroom materials including teacher books, kits, and other resources to implement
the curriculum. The grant will also help fund professional development, stipends for teachers
participating in OpenSciEd training, and cover the cost of substitutes in order for teachers to
attend professional development.

Respectfully submitted,

Michelle Romano, Director of Science K-12

mailto:mromano@hinghamschools.org
http://www.hinghamschools.org/


AD - MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the Hingham Public Schools is to provide challenging and comprehensive
educational programs in a safe and supportive environment, enabling all students to develop the
knowledge and skills necessary for success as local and global citizens.

The mission of the Hingham Public Schools is as follows:

Together with students, staff, families and community, we cultivate an equitable, inclusive,
innovative learning environment that empowers all students to contribute to their local and
global community.

Through effective collaboration, two-way communication to ensure an inclusive culture and a

sense of belonging, aligned, high-quality PK-12+ curriculum, innovative research-based

practices, data-informed instruction, and strong leadership, equitable and inclusive environments,

funding to provide effective, safe, and modern facilities, and a system of resources and support to

ensure consistency in leadership, and a diverse staff that reflects the student, we will cultivate an

equitable, inclusive, innovative learning environment that empowers all students to contribute to

their local and global community.

The Hingham Public Schools’ Core Values should remain constant in an ever-changing world.

These values provide the foundation for our work and influence how we conduct ourselves and

engage with others. The following set of core values was established:

● Inclusivity and Belonging

● Innovative Learning

● Personal Excellence

● Community Well-being

● Lifelong Learning

● Student Centered

● Civic and Global Responsibility

In partnership with families and the community, the District strives to develop in students:

• academic excellence, including content knowledge, communication skills, critical
thinking skills, and problem solving capacity

• habits of physical and emotional well-being, including a spirit of self-worth, resiliency,
and adaptability



• personal responsibility, integrity, and active citizenship

• responsibility for the environment

• skillful and responsible use of technology

The core beliefs of the Hingham Public Schools are:

- Fulfillment of individual potential

- Respect for self and others

- Civic responsibility

- Commitment to life-long learning

- Service to others

- Respect for the diverse views and backgrounds of others

- Collaborative engagement as a means of both learning and problem solving

- Intellectual curiosity that motivates future learning

- Creative expression through the fine, performing, and applied arts



DJE - PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS

Procurement practices shall attempt to secure the best quality at the best price. Purchases of
materials, equipment, and all contracts for construction or maintenance that are:

1) in excess of $100,000 $50,000 will be based upon competitive bidding;

2) between $10,000 and $100,000 $50,000 shall require the procurement officer to
attempt to secure 3 quotes for all materials, equipment, or services;

3) Less than $10,000 shall require the use of sound business practices.

An effort will be made to procure multiple bids for all purchases in excess of $100,000 $50,000.

Bidding procedure - bid advertisements will include invitation for suppliers to request placement
on the bid distribution list. Bids, containing all specifications, will be distributed to all suppliers
on the list.

Suppliers must submit their bids in sealed envelopes, addressed to the Superintendent and plainly
marked with the name of the bid and the time of the bid opening. Suppliers may withdraw their
bids prior to the scheduled time of the opening of the bids. Bids will be opened in public at the
time specified, and all bidders will be invited to be present. Any bid received after the time and
date specified will not be considered. All bids will remain firm for a period of 30 days after
opening.

When recommending acceptance of a bid, the Superintendent will inform the School Committee,
whenever possible, of the competitive price of a reasonable substitute for the item specified.

The Committee reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to accept the bid that appears to be
in the best interest of the District. The Committee reserves the right to waive any informality in,
or reject any or all bids or any part of any bid.

The bidder to whom an award is made may be required to enter into a written contract with the
District.

LEGAL REF.: M.G.L. 7:22A; 7:22B; 30B

CROSS REF.: DJA, Purchasing Authority

This policy was updated and approved by the Hingham School Committee on 4/25/22

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleII/Chapter7/section22a
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleII/Chapter7/section22b
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIII/Chapter30b
http://z2policy.ctspublish.com/masc/browse/hinghamset/hingham/KBE#

	08.07.2023 Agenda
	Item 2.1 Minutes of the School Committee meeting held on July 10, 2023
	Item 4.0 Enrollment Summary
	Item 4.0 Groundbreaking Invitation
	Item 4.1 Personnel Report Open Position August 7th
	Item 4.1 Personnel Report
	Item 4.2 2023-24 district review notification letter_Hingham
	Item 4.2 District Review FAQ
	Item 4.2 district-selfassessment
	Item 4.3 Memo on School Response to Water Bottle Ban (1)
	Item 4.3 Plastic Bottle Policy - 04 19 2023
	Item 4.4 CBS-Hingham_NDA-Liability Release_071823
	Item 4.4 Centrica-Hingham Memo_25A, 11i EMS Project
	Item 7.1 MOU - Field Maintenance
	Item 7.3 Change in Student Services Legal Counsel 
	Item 7.4 Proposed Student Trip to Portugal in April of 2024
	Item 7.5 Traces 23-24 lease updated language - Google Docs
	Item 7.6 Career Grant Memo 07-28-23
	Item 7.6 ESE FC 601 Grant Memo August 2023
	Item 7.7 AD - MISSION STATEMENT - DRAFT
	Item 7.8  DJE - PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS - DRAFT



